
 

Summary - Information meeting Thursday, 10 August 2017 – Market consultations regarding the 

operation of a deposit return system in Denmark 

 

The Danish Environmental Protection Agency (Miljøstyrelsen) (hereafter “the Agency”) opened the 

meeting by welcoming the participants and told that the operation of the deposit return system has been 

running for a long time and has been successful so far. The Agency wishes to clarify whether or not a 

market exists for the operation of the deposit return system in Denmark in the future. The Agency will 

look at the outcome of the market consultations, and it will then form the basis for a political decision 

on whether there should be an exposure to competition (konkurrenceudsættelse) of the operation of the 

deposit return system in Denmark. It was said that no decision had been taken as to whether there would 

be an exposure to competition. 

 

The individual participants presented themselves and it is noted that the following participated in the 

meeting: 

 

 Ministry of Industry, Business and Financial Affairs (Erhvervsministeriet) 

 The Danish Competition and Consumer Authority (Konkurrence og Forbrugerstyrelsen) 

 The Danish Environmental Protection Agency (Miljøstyrelsen)  

 The Ministry of Environment and Food of Denmark (Miljø og fødevareministeriet) 

 Marius Pedersen A/S 

 HCS A/S Transport & Spedition  

 Viggo Bendz A/S 

 Kammeradvokaten/Law Firm Poul Schmith (legal adviser to the Agency) (hereafter “Kam-

meradvokaten”) 

 

Kammeradvokaten provided the market operators with more knowledge about the procedure and pur-

pose of conducting market consultations. Kammeradvokaten began by emphasizing that the purpose of 

the market consultations with potential operators is to uncover the interest in the market for the opera-

tion of the deposit and return system and to get ideas from the operators on how it can be driven in the 

future, which is now regulated by the Statutory Order on Deposit on and the Collection etc. of Packing 

for Certain Beverages (pantbekendtgørelsen). The Agency would like to hear the market how this could 

be done in the future. It was stated that all proposals are welcome and there are no proposals that can be 

ruled out in advance. Then Kammeradvokaten went through the market consultation process (the power 

point presentation is attached as an attachment to this summary). It was emphasized that the bilateral 

meetings will be held individually with each participant and that the purpose with the publication of the 

results of the market consultations in a report is to form the basis for a political decision on whether 

there should be an exposure to competition (e.g. a tender). 

 

Then there was an opportunity for the participants to ask questions. The following were discussed: 

 

1. It was repeatedly asked how likely it was that there would be an exposure to competition. The 

answer was that no decision has been made to subject the operation of the deposit system to 

competition, but that the market consultations would be an important input for the political deci-

sion. In that regard, the Danish Competition and Consumer Authority stated that it is unlikely 
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that a new market dialogue will be announced on a provisional basis, and therefore called for 

market operators to show their interest now. 

 

2. It was also asked whether it was a political decision to expose the operation of the deposit return 

system in Denmark to competition. The answer was that there was a political decision from the 

minister that clarification should be made of the possibility of an exposure to competition. This 

is done through the market consultations. 

 

3. Furthermore, it was mentioned by a company that there could be several reasons why a company 

did not want to participate in the market consultations and that this did not necessarily reflect the 

lack of interest in operating the deposit return system in Denmark. The answer was that all com-

panies are welcome to send a short response justifying why they do not want to participate in the 

market consultations. 

 

4. One of the companies asked: What is the questionnaire from the Danish Competition and Con-

sumer Authority about? The Danish Competition and Consumer Authority replied that the sur-

vey is a supplement to the markets consultations and that the answers from the survey will be 

included in addition to the market consultations in the final report. Kammeradvokaten added that 

it was also a little less resource-consuming to answer the questions from the Danish Competition 

and Consumer Authority than to participate in the dialogue meetings. It was stated that there is 

only a requirement for submission of the application for participation if a company wishes to 

participate in the market consultations. Thus, it is not a requirement to respond in writing to 

questions from the Danish Competition and Consumer Authority or Agency to participate in the 

meetings.   

 

5. One of the companies asked: What is the reason for the market consultations to be initiated 

now? The Agency replied that the current system has been running for a very long time. It is 

therefore interesting to hear what the market may possibly offer in relation to a solution for the 

future. 

 

6. One of the companies asked: Do the Agency have an obligation to find a new solution through a 

tender? The Agency replied that there is no obligation to hold a tender. It is a political decision.  

 

7. One of the companies asked: Must the future deposit and return be run on a non-profit principle? 

Kammeradvokaten replied that that there are no sacred cows in this regard, everything is up for 

review.  

 

8. One of the companies asked: How are the current rates of income determined and will there be 

payments to stakeholders, e.g. the state, in a possible future system? Kammeradvokaten replied 

that the current rates are based on a self-financing/break-even principle, and there must of 

course be an assessment of the economy in a possible future solution. The Ministry of Industry, 
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Business and Financial Affairs further stressed that the payments to the state regarding parts of 

the deposits that have not been collected, and which the company can post as revenue, will ex-

pire in 2019, cf. section 9c(3) of the Environmental Protection Act.   

 

9. One of the companies asked: Can a tender be made in parallel with the current solution? Kam-

meradvokaten replied that it has not been decided.  

 

10. One of the companies asked: What about the exclusive right? Kammeradvokaten replied that the 

state can first assign the assignment to a new player when the exclusive right ends in 2022. 

 

11. One of the companies asked: If there is a tender, would it be a tender for a regular contract or a 

concession? Kammeradvokaten replied that there has been no decision how a possible exposure 

to competition should be done. 

 

12. Kammeradvokaten emphasized that in the dialogue, it should also be clarified whether the mar-

ket would be interested in acquiring Dansk Retursystem A/S or the company's assets. 

 

13. One of the companies noted that the state’s right to take over the shares in Dansk Retursystem 

A/S depends on whether there is a "necessary" and asked: Is this matter cleared with Dansk Re-

tursystem? Kammeradvokaten replied that it has not been discussed with Dansk Retursystem 

A/S whether they agree on the possibility of the state to buy their shares. 

 

In conclusion, the Agency thanked for participation in the meeting and said that all are welcome to call 

or write if they have questions.  

 

For further information about or question regarding the market consultations in general, please write to 

both ncri@mst.dk and mst@mst.dk on the August 16 at the latest. Any questions must be submitted in 

Danish or English. 
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